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THE HEARI NG OFFI CER Wl cone everyone, old
acquai ntances. | have to characterize nost of you in
that category. W're set up a little differently than
we nornmally set up. And I'"'mnot sure | like it. Many
of you seemto be in distant view fromthis |ocation.
So it seened to ne, we needed at | east in the past have
been a little nore intinmate in another set up. W
arranged the furniture this way, because we have sone
peopl e participating electronically online in renote
| ocations, and we want to nake sure that everybody can
see the screens, including the Hearing O ficer and
reporter. So that's the reason for the change.

This is the tine and pl ace schedul ed for a
hearing regarding the issuance of a Fifth Methodol ogy
Order in the Surface Water Coalition delivery call case.
And probably the first matter of business is to
i ntroduce everyone here and call roll.

So let's start, and we have a court reporter
here, that is famliar to many. Colleen, if you would
I ntroduce yourself. And then we'll go across the front
and go row by row

THE REPORTER: Col | een Doherty, with MM Court
Reporti ng.

THE HEARI NG OFFICER. | might just add that

Col | een has been participating i n enough of these
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hearings that she probably is devel oped sone experti se
in the vernacul ar of water. And so we appreci ate M&M
Court Reporting and their help.

" m Gary Spackman, the Director of the Idaho
Depart nent of Water Resources.

MR WOCOD: Pete Wod, attorney for the
Depart nent .

THE HEARI NG OFFICER Let's start with you,
Travis, and then w nd through.

MR, THOMPSON: Travis Thonpson with Marten
Law, attorney for A & B lIrrigation District, et al.

MR. FLETCHER: Kent Fletcher, attorney for
M nidoka Irrigation District, and Anerican Falls
Reservoir District No. 2.

MR. BRICKER  Max Bricker with Somach Simmons
& Dunn, on behalf of the Gty of Pocatello.

MS. KLAHN: Sarah Klahn with the Somach
Si nmmons & Dunn, also for the Cty of Pocatello.

MR. BROMLEY: Chris Bromey with MHugh
Bromey for the Coalition of the Cities, the Cties, et
al .

MR, HARRI S: Rob Harris with Hol den, Kidwell,
Hahn & Crapo, on behalf of the City of Idaho Falls.

MR. CONTOR  Bryce Contor at Rocky Mountain

Envi ronnmental with the |daho G ound Water Di strict.
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MR, SULLIVAN: And I'm Greg Sullivan wth
Spronk Water Engi neers on behalf of the ESPA Cities, and
the Gty of Pocatello.

MR JOHNS: |'m Skyler Johns with d sen
Taggart, and | represent Bonneville-Jefferson G ound
Water District.

MR. ANDERSON: Dyl an Ander son, Bi ngham G ound
Water District.

MR. BUDGE: TJ Budge with Racine d son, |daho
G ound WAt er Appropriators.

MS. PATTERSON: Eli sheva Patterson, Racine
A son, also with the Idaho G ound Water Appropriators.

MR, SI MPSON:  Good norning. John Sinmpson with
Marten Law, with A & B Irrigation District, et al.

MR, COLVIN. Dave Colvin with LRE Water
representing | GAA

MR R &BY: Jerry Rigby, Ri bgy Andrus & Ri gby,
representing three of ground water districts in | GM

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER  Then in the back if
you'l |l speak up |oudly.

M5. SUKOW Jenni fer Sukow, |daho Depart nent
of WAt er Resources.

M5. FERGUSON: Kara Ferguson, |daho Depart nent
of \WAter Resources.

MR. ANDERS: Matt Anders, | DWR
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MR, JACKSON: Al Jackson wth the Bi ngham
Ground Water District.

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER:  Thank you, Al .

Ckay. Now, we need to call roll for those who
are participating renotely. So let's start. And ||
just |l ook at the screen. Sarah, are you there?

M5. McHUGH  Thank you. You nean, Candi ce.

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER: Candi ce, did you speak?

M5. McHUGH:. Yeah. | wasn't sure if you neant
Sarah or Candi ce. Because we have Candi ce and Sophia, |
t hi nk who are renote.

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER°  And we have sone ot hers
who are listening in. | don't think I'lIl call the roll
for all of those folks. Are there other attorneys who
are participating? And we have at | east one expert
W t ness participating.

MS. SI GSTEDT: Sophia Sigstedt with Lynker on
behal f of | GM

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER:  Thank you, Sophi a.

Ckay. | don't know unless there is a need for
me to call for others who may be listening in. So the
instructions that we sent out regarding el ectronic
participati on woul d be that Candi ce McHugh and Sophi a
wll be participating in the hearing and either wll

exam ne or offer testinony renotely. Everyone else is
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just listening in, and those fol ks are not participants
in the hearing. And you will be nuted for the entirety

of the hearing. So that's the instruction. And it's a
managenent requirement for ne. O herwi se we woul d have
t oo nany peopl e speaki ng, and those who are not at | east
officially parties to this matter.

Ckay. Let ne just check and see if we have
everyone. | know there are attorneys --

M5. McHUGH Director, this is Candice. Can |
ask --

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER:  Yes, Candi ce.

M5. McHUGH | don't know when everyone is

speaking if they make objections or sonething |like that.

Travis and Kent were fairly, | could hear themfairly
well, but Max, Chris, | couldn't hear them or Jerry
Ri gby very well. So just kind of wanted to make sure

people were by the mcs.

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER  Ckay. Well, Candice,
since you raised this issue. So we have a room
m crophone that's set up, | think overhead for the
attorneys. But when an attorney is exam ning a wtness,
we would like you to come forward. There is a table in
front. And you can deposit your exhibits or other
materials on the table. You have a choice of either

exam ning fromthe lectern or the table, itself. There
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Is a mcrophone set up in each of those. And the
witness will be here to ny right.

So hopefully the physical arrangenent wil |
pronote a verbal dial ogue that everybody can hear. But
if there are objections fromthe attorneys, we'll ask
t hat you speak up very loudly, so that the m crophone
wi Il pick up your voice. And so those participating
renotely can hear, and the court reporter can record the
obj ection and any of the exchange. So we'll have to be
m ndful of the need to be outspoken in these discussions
t oday.

All right. Let nme just look at this |ist
again. The Bureau of Reclamation is not represented,
but they've been observers nore than anything. Ckay.
think we have all of the parties represented today.

All right. There are sonme prelinmnary matters
that we need to talk about. And sonme either requests or
petitions that are pending in front of the Hearing
Oficer right now So there is a request for issuance
of a subpoena to Mat Weaver and Tony O enichak to
testify as witnesses -- hello -- maybe just a vocal
glitch.

And so there is a request that the Hearing
Oficer or the Director issue subpoenas for Mat Waver

and Tony O enichak. And because of the timng of those
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requests, and because of the nature of the testinony at
| east is as anticipated. | have prepared or am
preparing an order denying that request to issue
subpoenas to those two folks. And I'lIl issue that
shortly and will distribute it by hand.

| also have a notion to limt testinony that's
pending. And the ground water users, | don't think have
had a response or an opportunity to respond. That
notion | think came in within the | ast couple of days.
Is there sone desire on the part of the petitioners and
the ground -- the other -- well, | shouldn't say the
ground water users, although | think that's who m ght
oppose the noti on.

Petitioners, do you wish to orally present any
information at this stage?

MR, THOWPSON: This is Travis Thonpson,
Director. Just briefly. W filed this yesterday after
| ooking at the list of the wi tnesses, proposed
testinony, and exhibits. And | guess simlar to prior
hearings in this natter where parties have requested a
hearing on the Director's order, in this case the Fifth
Order and the As-Applied Oder, we think that the scope
of that hearing should be limted to those issues
identified there.

It looks like to nme that we're attenpting to
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go back and redo an adm nistrative hearing we had in
2008. That was then subject to a final order and then
judicial review W attached a copy of Judge WIdman's
deci sion to Exhibit A to our notion that conprehensively
addr esses t he net hodol ogy.

So that was the basis for our notion. | don't
have real specifics right now But | guess as we go
t hrough this hearing, we would |like a standing objection
that if we go beyond the scope of those two orders and
i ssues that are pertinent before the Departnent, that we
would limt that. Thank you.

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER  Responses? M. Budge.

MR. BUDGE: Thank you, Director. TJ Budge on
behal f of the IGM, |daho G ound Water Appropriators. |
guess to begin, the parties did file their statenents of
issues in this case a nonth ago. So it's a bit peculiar
that we got this served on us the day before the hearing
as we're traveling to Boise. W have not had a | ot of
time to prepare for it. But | do want to share just a
f ew t hought s.

If we're going to follow the Coalitions |line
of reasoning, then the transition froma transient
steady state to a transient state nodel is res judicata.
A transient state nodel was at issue in the earlier

hearing in the context of carryover storage. And so
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it's certainly sonething the parties were aware of. It
was an issue that could have been litigated in that
proceeding. And if that is barred by res judicata, then
t hat conponent of the Fifth Methodol ogy Order nust, you
know, be reversed.

Al so, acreage was litigated in that prior
proceedi ng, and the Departnent accepted the acreage
evi dence presented by the junior ground water users. W
wer e successful in that. And that would al so be
res judicata.

So if we're going to go that way, we really
have to identify what issues are on the table, because
it's not a one-way street. You don't get to change just
t he conponents that you like, and then claimit's
res judicata, so the conponents you don't like. That's
probably not the right approach. And the reason is is
t hat the nethodol ogy order is required by |law to be
based on the best science avail able. And science
changes, facts change, circunstances change. 1It's not a
traditional court order that is |ocked in place forever.
It's nore of a living docunent.

And so if we're going to | ook at nore recent
data, if we're going to consider changes in science,
then we have the ability to |l ook at all conponents of

t he nmet hodol ogy and see, is there a conpelling reason to
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change any of the conmponents based on experience,
sci ence, and recent data.

So for those reasons, we'd ask that the court
deny the notion, or the Director deny the notion.

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER: O her responses?

M. Harris.

MR. HARRI'S: Thank you, Director. Ral ph
Harris on behalf of the City of lIdaho Falls. Just to
add to what TJ said, we haven't had the chance to
research the matter in depth.

But | would draw the Director's attention to
the I daho Suprene Court case of Erickson versus Anot h,
whi ch provides the followng. GCenerally the doctrine of
res judicata extends only to facts and conditions as
they existed at the tine the judgnment was rendered. And
ordinarily res judicata does not apply where there were
changed conditions and new facts, which did not exist at
the tine of prior judgnent.

The general viewis that where after the
rendition of a judgnent, subsequent events occur
creating a new | egal situation, or altering the |egal
rights relations of the litigants, the judgnent may
t hereby be precluded from operating as an estoppel.

As M. Thonmpson nmenti oned, the original order

was issued in 2008. There have been change
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circunstances. |In fact, | believe you indicated that
was one of the prinmary reasons you were | ooki ng at
updating the Fifth Met hodol ogy Order. And so for that
reason, we think all issues are on the table here today.
Thank you.

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER° O her statenents?

MR. ANDERSON: Yes.

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER: Dyl an, M. Anderson.

MR. ANDERSON: Just briefly, Director. One of
the things that was call ed out specifically was
sonething that we intend to introduce as part of Bi ngham
Ground Water refers to, you know, the econom c i npacts.
And the C ear Springs Food, Inc. case was cited in that.
And | just wanted to just go on into that case. It
i ntroduced, or the Springs Food case quoted the AFRD
case.

And it just said sonewhere between the
absolute right to use a decreed water right and an
obligation not to waste it, and to protect the public's
interest in this valuable commobdity Iies an area for the
exerci se of discretion by the Director. In that sense,
t he court recognized sone discretion by the Director to
| ook at the reasonabl eness of diversions, |ook at the
reasonabl eness of what's required by the senior water

right holder. | think that the changes contenplated in
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the Fifth Met hodol ogy certainly woul d change the
reasonabl eness required by the Departnent in a sense if
you are potentially curtailing ten-fold acreage. The
econom c inpact is increased ten-fold, or actually even
exponentially nore than ten-fold as it conmpounds. And
so |l think that is certainly relevant data for the
Departnent to have, and to understand, and consider in
t heir reasonabl eness cal cul ati ons.

The sections that were quoted are not
necessarily pertaining to limting any economc
i nformati on before the Departnent. And certainly the
Suprene Court didn't deemit inadm ssible or conpletely
irrelevant. They just sinply didn't use that
information for that particul ar argunment.

So we'd join in the rest of the argunents
al ready stated. Thank you, Director.

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER O her statenents?

Ckay. As | understood what you presented,
M. Thonpson, you were asking for a standi ng objection.
As | look through the |ist of witnesses and al so the
i ssues, it seens to ne that nany of the w tnesses may be
called to testify about the economnm c inpacts of
curtailnment. And as | read -- well, first of all, as I
| ook at the nethodol ogy order and conponent facts that

contribute to the devel opnent and to the witing of the
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Fi fth Met hodol ogy Order, economcs was not a part of the
underlying facts that were considered. And, in fact,

t he decisions as | read themthat have been i ssued,
stated that econonic inpact and a conparative anal ysis
of economics is not part of prior appropriation

adm ni strati on.

And so | guess what I'mtrying to say is, the
testinony that | receive in this particular hearing wl|
be limted to the factual conponents that were a part of
t he devel opnent and witing of the Fifth Methodol ogy
Order. And economics were not a part of those facts.

And, in fact, as | read the court decisions,
the court has said that the econom c conpari son woul d
actually frustrate and thwart the adm ni strati on of
wat er under the prior appropriation doctrine. And so |
will cut short in the exam nation, presentation on the
respective econom c benefits or the econoni c inpacts of
possi bl e curtail nent under the Fifth Methodol ogy Order.

Now, there nay be other areas that exploration
that are outside of the nethodol ogy order, itself, and
those areas if there is exam nati on regardi ng those
areas, | will allow objections. And will rule on those
obj ecti ons depending on the relevance to the Fifth
Met hodol ogy Order.

So Il'mtrying to at | east set sone boundaries
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as to the scope of exam nation. And there nmay be ot her
areas beyond econonmics. But it seenmed to ne that at

| east the focus on economic issues in |ooking at the
list of witnesses and the issues is not appropriate in
this particular hearing. GCkay?

All right. | don't know that | have any ot her
I ssues that are pending right now. There may be sone
additional notions that the parties want to offer, and
bring before the Hearing O ficer at this point. Are
t here notions, and pre-hearing notions that the parties
wi sh to offer up?

VWw. You're an agreeabl e crowd.

All right. Let's talk about exhibit
nunbering. There is a little confusion about it. There
were specific ranges of nunbers that each of the parties
were assigned. And | think there has been sone
adj ustnent in that nunberi ng.

M . Budge, you may have gone over your range
that was ny understanding. But | think the parties had
recogni zed that renunbering. But | think just recently
there has been an attenpt to try to consolidate
exhi bits.

And | just want to know how the parties want
to address that attenpted consolidation.

El esheva.
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M5. PATTERSON. Good norning, Director. Yes,
as you can see behind you, there is a |ot of paper. And
so IGMA filed its initial disclosures. W exceeded our
all otted range. And so we al so used the 800 nunbers.
Later after all of the initial disclosures were made,
our staff went through and tried to identify common
exhi bits and nunbered those as 900, which were uni que,
in an attenpt to save paper and try to sinplify things.
And so we have disclosed that to all the parties. |
have not recei ved any objection to the anended pre-tri al
di scl osures. But will respond to themif there is any
obj ecti ons.

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER:  What do the parties want

to do?

M. Fletcher?

MR. FLETCHER Director, it m ght be hel pful
to just recite, if you renenber, | don't know if you

remenber the ranges that go to each classification. So
that the Director is aware of that.

M5. PATTERSON: | GMA was assigned the 100 to
199 nunbers. And so we do have docunments that range
from Exhi bit No. 100 to 199. Sone of those have been
renoved. And now are | abeled as common exhibits. And
t hen we al so have exhibits | abeled 800 to 837. And

agai n, sone of those in the anended pre-trial disclosure
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were renoved. And so this will not be a continuous
list, but all docunents are uniquely identified for the
record. And common hearing exhibits --

M5. McHUGH  El esheva, this is Candice. D d
you send us that? In ny examnation, | just have four
exhibits that | refer to in the 300 series. |I'm
guessi ng that they have now been renunbered to the 900
series. But | think I'"mjust going to keep themw th
the 300 series, because I"'mat a little bit of
di sadvant age not havi ng paper to be able to | ook
t hrough, or | could just tell you what they are, and
soneone could tell nme if they are the 900 series, and |
can change the exhi bit nunbers, but...

MS. PATTERSON: So that is one issue --

M5. McHUGH | think that m ght be confusing.

MS. PATTERSON: That is one issue with the
conmon exhibits. So | GM did send out an anended
exhibit list where we had renoved fromour exhibits
t hose that becane common. But | don't know that the
Cities and other parties were able to do so. But I
think as long as we're all identifying, you know, our
subm tted docunent, we can keep the record straight.

And, Candice, you can use the commobn exhibits
if you would like. And | can try to send you an updat ed

nunmbering for those to keep things sinple.

000025




© 00 N o o b~ wWw N P

[ N R S N A N A C R LS R e e o T e N e B o B e B e B o R )
o b~ W N P O © 00 N o O »d w N B+, O

Hearing - Vol. | - June 6, 2023 26

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER:  Let ne just add that
Sarah Tschohl, a paralegal in our office, she has
conpiled a list of exhibits for ne. And she has
identified those exhibits that were al so desi gnated as
conmon exhibits.

And for the benefit of Candice McHugh, | don't
show any of the McCain Foods exhi bits as bei ng conmon
exhibits at least in ny summary.

M5. PATTERSON: | think that's correct. W
had sone exhibits that were comon with
Bonnevill e-Jefferson and with the Gties exhibits. But
| don't think we had any in common with the McCai n Foods
or the Coalition.

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER  So, Candice, in answer
to your question, at least in ny summary, your exhibits
are nunmbered 600 through 604. And none of them are
conmon exhi bits.

M5. McHUGH  Thank you, M. Director. First
of all, well, I think the Amal gamated' s were 600 t hrough
604, or | nmean McCain's. And Anmal ganated's were 700 to
703. But | will be exam ning Jennifer using Coalition
exhi bits 300, 301, 305, and 318. And | think those are
probably Coalition of Cities or -- yeah, the Gties
Exhi bits 300, 301, 305, and 318. And those are the four

exhibits | was specifically tal ki ng about.
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THE HEARI NG OFFI CER: Well, sone of those are

common.
M5. McHUGH  Right.
MS. PATTERSON: Candice, if you want to refer
to -- Candice, if you want --

M5. McHUGH  Tell ne what nunber to refer to,
and |'mgood with it.

M5. PATTERSON. | think since we'll be noving
into Jennifer Sukow s --

(Interruption had in the proceeding.)

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER.  Sarah Tschohl, are you

t here? Sonmebody wasn't nuted.

MR HARRIS: | think it's Katie, whoever Katie
I S.

THE HEARI NG OFFICER | don't know who Kati e
I S.

MS. PATTERSON: Yeah, Katie, please nmute your
m c

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER: Sar ah, can you i npose
your draconi an hand and nute Katie?

MS. PATTERSON: | think she addressed the
I ssue.

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER.  Okay.

M5. PATTERSON: Candice, what | was going to

suggest since we're starting out with Ms. Sukow first,
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and your exhibits that you referenced for the Gties are
responsive to that portion of the testinony. Please use
those. And we'll just, if we have foll ow up, we'll
refer to the Cities exhibits as | GM reserve the right
to use any exhibits produced by any party.

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER  Ckay. So wi thout any
objection, we'll introduce, if we can, the nunbered
exhi bits that have been identified as common with the
nunbering identified by GM in the 900 series. |Is that
acceptable to everyone? And | could supply this
cross-reference list if people want this list. If it
woul d be beneficial, we could copy it?

MR. BROMLEY: That woul d be.

MS. KLAHN: Yes.

THE HEARI NG OFFICER:  So at the first break,
I'll ask to have this copied and distributed to all of
the parties. And we'll be able to refer to a comon
list of exhibits if that's okay, El esheva?

M5. PATTERSON: Yes. Thank you, Director.

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER M. Thonpson.

MR, THOMPSON:. Just to clarify. W're
stipulating to the numbering, and not the actual
exhi bits thensel ves; is that correct?

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER  That's correct.

MR. THOMPSON: Ckay.
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THE HEARI NG OFFI CER My next questi on was,
have the parties stipulated to the adm ssion of any of
the exhibits that have been identified? And if they
haven't, maybe there is an opportunity as we go through
to stipulate to the adm ssion of some of those. It
woul d speed up the hearing significantly if for every
exhibit, we didn't have to nove for adm ssion.

MR, THOWPSON: | think that woul d be our
intent to try and do that. W haven't gone through the
entire list of the other parties yet. But the ones
we'll admit to, we'll stipulate to.

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER  Okay. All right. |
have in front of ne -- 1'll change subjects and not talk
about exhibits, unless there is nore discussion
regardi ng the exhibits, nunbering, and possible
sti pul ati on.

All right. |1 want to nove to a proposed
W t ness schedul e that has been offered to the parti es.
And at | east ny understanding is there has been sone
di scussi on about the w tnesses, and the order in which
they'Il be called. And | want to refer back to a
di scussi on about the days that were schedul ed for
heari ng.

It was ny intent that we would attenpt to

finish this hearing in four days, on Friday. And then
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Sat urday was reserved for any spillover. And | have on
this list six wtnesses for Saturday, the 10th of June.
And | want everybody to know, that | intend to try and

finish on Friday. Because |I don't want to have an

i nconpl ete hearing conme Saturday.

And so | will conpress this |ist of w tnesses
and the days that the wtnesses will appear and testify.
And if | find that we're getting behind, I will hold you
over. And we will start early. Because | want to
ensure that we finish, and at |l east attenpt to finish by
Fri day.

And if you can keep ne apprised of sonme of
t hese wi tnesses who nay or may not testify as we proceed
t hrough the hearing, | would appreciate it. | don't
want to hold you over, and then finish on Thursday at
noon. It would be great, | guess. But | want everybody
to know that | want to finish. And ny goal is to finish
on Fri day.

MS. KLAHN: M. Director.

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER  Yes.

MS. KLAHN: Sarah Kl ahn for the Cty of
Pocatello. On the |list that you have, Sophia Sigstedt
and G eg Sullivan, the order there is flipped. So
M. Sullivan wll go before Sophia, and after

M. Barlogi, just an FYIl.
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THE HEARI NG OFFI CER:  That woul d be great.
And | appreciate the parties honestly coordi nati ng and
figuring out who will be avail able on which days, so
t hat we can accommpdat e peopl e as best we can. So |
appreci ate everybody's efforts. And there may need to
be sone adj ustnent because of availability or
unavail ability.

We had to get Jennifer Sukow excused fromjury
duty by the way, and issue her a subpoena. So that she
could then go present it to the folks at the county, so
t hat she coul d be here.

Candi ce, were you wanting to say sonethi ng?

M. MHUGH Yes. [|I'msorry. | think there
iIs just a slight delay. And you kind of addressed it.
| just wanted to note for the record that McCain's
W tness, Scott King, and Amal gamated's i s Dean Del orey,
they are available Friday. So they need to go on
Friday. M. King mght have a little nore flexibility,
but he's checking his schedule. But M. Del orey does
not. So regardless, | would ask that they be set for
Friday. | expect their testinony to be |l ess than ten
mnutes. So it would be really quick.

THE HEARI NG OFFICER: Ckay. | also notice on
the screen that Katie continues to appear. And I'm

assum ng that nmeans that she is not nuted.
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Candice is now there. But Katie was on the
screen earlier. So | would ask whoever Katie is, wll
you pl ease nmute your m crophone.

And, Sarah Tschohl, if you can control wth
t he Draconian hand, | would appreciate it as well.

M. Fletcher, you had a coment.

MR. FLETCHER: | just wanted to clarify the
swtch in witness order. |Is Geg Sullivan going before
Del orey?

MS5. KLAHN: No. No. Sophia and Greg are
switching. That's all.

MR. FLETCHER: Ckay. Thank you.

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER:  Okay.

MR THOMPSON: M. Director, one point on that
list. W do have Justin Tenple at sone point, probably
Friday, not very long, ten mnutes. But that will be
added.

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER: | expect to have sone
flexibility in this wtness schedule. Particularly if
I"'mtrying to conpress. So if the parties will just

keep ne apprised of what's happeni ng, and keep everybody

el se apprised, then we'll be able to keep to a
sem -rigid schedule. Again, | appreciate everybody's
efforts.

Ckay. Are there other matters we need to take
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up this norning?

Let's tal k about the order of questioning. So
because this is a hearing that a Hearing Oficer and the
Director initiated, and because at |east the
Departnent's wi tnesses do not have docunents that they
prepared, and specifically for the hearing, itself.
Oten the Hearing O ficer will ask for a staff nmeno.

W will have then the Departnent w tnesses
testify at least as in timng as closely as possible to
t he begi nning of the hearing. Then what 1'll do is I'l|
ask the Surface Water Coalition to question the
Departnent witness shortly after to the extent that
there are questions. And then allow the other parties
to question the Departnent wtness. And then we'll
circle back and allow what | woul d characterize as
redi rect based on the questions that are asked.

Now, if that's not an order that the parties
want to follow, | want to hear about it today.
Particularly fromthe Surface Water Coalition, if you
think it conmprom ses your ability to question the
W t nesses.

MR FLETCHER: Just a comment. M. Director,
nost of the questions are going to be raised by the
ground water users. And until they ask their questions,

we can try to cover the areas we think they're concerned
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about it. But it mght be nore efficient to |let them

question the wtness, and then |et us address those

I ssues.

THE HEARI NG OFFICER:  And | don't oppose your
pr oposal

MR, FLETCHER: | think that would be nore
efficient. | nmean, obviously, we're not the ones

contesting nost of the issues in the nmatter.

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER Any ot her thoughts?

All right. Well, based on your suggestion,
M. Fletcher, we'll have the Departnent w tness
I ntroduced. And sone prelimnary information brought
into the record or offered by the deputy attorney
general here today, Pete Wod. And then we'll ask the
ground water users and the other parties aligned with
themto question the Departnment witness. And then there
wi |l be an opportunity for questioning.

And then | don't know how to characteri ze

this, whether it's redirect or recross. |It's really not
either, | suppose in the exam nation of the Departnent
W t nesses. But the ground water users will have two

opportunities. And the Surface Water Coalition wll
have two opportunities. And then we'll be done.

MR. FLETCHER: Thank you.

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER:  Fair enough?
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MR FLETCHER  Yes.

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER:  And then | woul d expect
with the other witnesses, that we follow a nore
traditional nmethod of exam nation. Were the w tness
testifies, and then there is an opportunity for
Cross-exam nation, and redirect, and recross. So it's
only with the Departnment witnesses that | think there is
an anomal ous presentation of testinony.

Ckay. O her natters we need to tal k about ?

Pete, any matters?

MR WOOD: Not that | can think of.

THE HEARI NG OFFICER: Okay. |'mready for the
first wwtness. Again, let ne rem nd everybody, as you
exam ne, | want you to cone forward. Assune either a
seat at the table or standing at the |lectern, and then
you can examne fromeither place. The witness wll be
here, seated to ny right.

TJ?

MR. BUDGE: Yes. D rector, there is one nore
pretrial matter | forgot about. | think counsel did as
well. But counsel for the parties did stipulate that
t he expert w tnesses would be qualified as such w thout
needi ng to go through, you know, their background, and
denonstrate their capabilities to testify as experts.

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER.  Yes. Thanks for raising
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and identifying the stipulation. So | will accept the
stipulation. I'mwell acquainted | think wth nost of
t he experts, if not all of the experts, who will testify

today. And | appreciate the pre-hearing stipulation
that will encourage efficiency.

MR FLETCHER  Yes.

THE HEARI NG OFFICER M. Fl etcher.

MR, FLETCHER: On that issue, M. Director, we
stipulated to a designated |ist of expert w tnesses. W
did not stipulate to a M. dson. And |I'mnot sure we
stipul ated to Jaxon for everything as an expert on
everything he put in his report, Jaxon Hi ggs. But the
rest of the experts | can think of, | believe we can
stipulate to their adm ssion as experts. And the ground
water users clarified that to be to the matters
contained in their reports.

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER:  Okay. darification
accepted, TJ.

MR, BUDGE: Yes.

THE HEARI NG OFFICER:  All right. Anything
el se?

Jenni fer Sukow, if you'll cone forward,
pl ease.

JENNI FER SUKOW

first duly sworn to tell the truth relating to said
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cause, testified as foll ows:
THE HEARI NG OFFI CER:  Thank you. Pl ease be
seat ed.
M. Wod, you may exam ne Ms. Sukow.
DI RECT EXAM NATI ON
QUESTI ONS BY MR WOOD:

Q Hello, Ms. Sukow. Can you pl ease state and
spell your nane for the record.

A Jenni fer Sukow, J-e-n-n-i-f-e-r, S-u-k-o0-w.

Q And what is your educational background?

A. | have a bachelor's degree in environnental
geol ogy and technology fromthe University of North
Dakota, and a nmaster's of science in civil engineering
fromUah State University.

Q And you are a licensed professional engineer
and geol ogist in ldaho; is that correct?

A.  Yes.

Q And you were currently enpl oyed at the |Idaho
Depart nent of Water Resources?

A, Yes.

Q And how | ong have you worked for the
Depart nent ?

A.  About 15 years.

Q And you are currently a technical engineer for

t he hydrol ogy section?
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A, Yes.

Q And how | ong have you been in that position?
A.  About 13 years.

Q | wuld like to turn to the Fifth Methodol ogy
Order. Are you famliar with that docunent?

A, Yes.

Q And sone of the data in the Fifth Methodol ogy
Order you know a | ot about; is that right?

A. Sone of it, yes.

Q And you played a role in devel opi ng sone of
t hat information?

A. Sone of the findings of fact, yes.

Q And that is why the Departnent has sel ected
you to be a witness today; is that correct?

A.  That's ny under st andi ng.

Q And you were aware that on May 5th, 2023, the
Director issued a notice advising the parties of two
topic areas that you mght testify today about?

A.  Yes.

Q And those two topic areas are the foll ow ng:
The first is steady state nodeling versus transient
state nodeling, sinmulations for the ESPA. And the
second is calculations of curtailnment priority dates for
the Surface Water Coalition's delivery call. Does that

sound correct?
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A, Yes.
Q And do you have any concerns that you're
unqual i fied to discuss those topics here today?
A No.
MR. WOOD: The Departnent has no further
questions at this tine.
THE HEARI NG OFFI CER: Thank you, M. Wod.
All right. Gound water users, is there an
order of exam nation that you prefer?
M5. McHUGH M. Director, this is Candice.
think "'mslated to go first.
THE HEARI NG OFFI CER:  Okay. Ms. McHugh.
M5. McHUGH: Just for sone efficiency, could I
have the w tness handed the Coalition of Cties'
exhi bits No. 300, the binder for that?
MR WOOD: Was it 300 through 3137
M5. McHUGH 300 and then through 318.
THE HEARI NG OFFI CER°  The wi tness has the
docunents in front of her.
M5. McHUGH  Ckay. Thank you.
CROSS- EXAM NATI ON
QUESTI ONS BY Ms. McHUGH:
Q Good norning, Jennifer. Candice McHugh on
behal f of the Coalition of GCties and McCain Foods. |If
you could | ook at the binder, and grab Exhi bit 300.
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(Exhi bit 300 nmarked.)

Q (BY Ms. McHUGH) If you could identify Exhibit
3007

MR THOMPSON: Director, this is the --

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER  Just a nonent, Candi ce.

M5. McHUGH  Ckay.

MR THOMPSON: This is our first overlap. |
think this is GM' s common 918. And if you just want
to use that once, or admt it twice in the record. |'m
confused on what we're going to do?

THE HEARI NG OFFICER  So should we refer to
this as 9187

M5. McHUGH  Ckay. W can --

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER°  And one of the concerns
| have is that the exhibits, thensel ves, and the
docunents, thenselves, don't bear those nunbers; do
they? It's only --

MS. PATTERSON: Not the 900s.

MR. THOWPSON: The 900s do. They are all
Bat es st anped.

MS. KLAHN: W coul d substitute.

M5. McHUGH: The other option, not to bel abor
the record, but if you give her Exhibit NO 918, 919,
and 920. And if soneone could tell ne what 900 series

the April 2022 forecast supply order is, | could also
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use that 900 nunmber. But | just don't -- fromthe
descriptions, fromIGM s descriptions, | can't tell
what 900 nunber that is.

MR. BUDGE: So Candice 918 is the Fifth
Met hodol ogy Order.

MS. McHUGH:  Unh- huh.

MR. BUDGE: And 919 is the As-Applied Oder.

M. MHUGH R ght. I1'mlooking for -- | know
that. | need the April 2022 As-Applied Order nunber in
t he 900 seri es.

THE HEARI NG OFFICER  All right. Let's go off
t he record.

(Of the record.)

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER:  Are we ready to go back
on? W're recording again. Thank you, Coll een.

All right. Candice, if you will refer to the
exhi bits you want the witness to review And we're
expecting exhibits in the 300 seri es.

M5. McHUGH G eat. Thank you.

Q (BY M. McHUGH) Good norning, Jennifer.
W'l start again. In front of you, you should have
Exhibit No. 300. Can you identify that docunent?

A It's the "Fifth Anended Fi nal O der Regarding
Met hodol ogy for Determning Material Injury to

Reasonabl e | n- Season Demand and Reasonabl e Carryover."
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(Exhi bit 301 nmarked.)

Q (BY Ms. MHUGH) GCkay. And if you could just
flip in that binder to Exhibit 301, and identify that
exhi bit?

A. It's the "Final Order Regarding April 2023
Forecast Supply.™

Q And can you just provide a brief explanation
as to what your role was in creating Exhibits 300 and
Exhi bit 3017?

A In Exhibit 300, | assisted with witing
findings of fact relating to the ESPA ground water flow
nodel and cal culation of a curtailnent priority date for
the delivery call. And in Exhibit 301, | did the
cal cul ations of the curtailnment priority date and the
proportionate shares for A & B and IGM. And | inserted
that information in the draft of the order.

Q Oay. And so if | understand you correctly,
once the Director determ ned that there was shortage to
Tw n Falls Canal Conpany, you determnm ned that Decenber
31st, 1953 would be the appropriate curtailnent date; is
t hat correct?

A. That's correct.

Q And the expectation was if water users junior
to the Decenber 31st, 1953 were curtailed, you would

expect approximately 75,000 acre-feet of water would
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accrue to Twn Falls Canal Conpany; is that correct?

AL W would predict with the nodel that
approxi mately 75,000 acre-feet would accrue to the near
Bl ackf oot to M ni doka reach between May 1 and Sept enber
30th of this irrigation season.

Q Gkay. And Twn Falls Canal Conpany's water
supply is supplied by that reach of the river; is that
true?

A. Yes, they have a natural flow that is diverted
fromthat reach of the river.

Q Oay. And in determ ning the curtail nent
date, and the anount of water that would accrue to the
Tw n Falls Canal Conpany, you used the nodel in a
transient node; is that true?

A. Yes, | did a transient sinulation as described
in the Fifth Methodol ogy O der.

Q Oay. And if you could |look at Exhibit 300 on
page 2. And do you see the paragraph there that says
that the Departnent has had additional, and many years
to understand the inpact of applying steady state
nodel i ng? Do you see that paragraph there?

A.  Yes.

Q And you didn't wite this paragraph; did you?

A No, | didn't wite it. | think | was asked to

ook at it, and | edited a couple words in one of the
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sentences just to make it technically correct.

Q GCkay. Wen you first started with the
Departnment roughly 13 years ago, you knew the difference
in inpacts when you started with the Departnent between
the output froma steady state nodel and a transient
state nodel; is that correct?

A, Yes.

Q And your predecessor Allan Wlie al so knew t he
di fference i n nodel output between a steady state output
and a transient nodel output; correct?

A.  Yes.

Q And changing froma steady state nodel to a
transient nodel to predict curtail nent date, wasn't a
decision in the Fifth Methodol ogy Order, Exhibit 300,
based on technical information; was it?

A. Wll, | was asked to prepare technica
i nformati on about the change from steady state to
transient, and | did present that technical information
to the technical working group and the Director.

Q | guess ny question is, the change from goi ng
froma steady state nodel that had happened for the
prior at |least 13 years since you' ve been with the
Departnent, to this year to the nove to a transient
nodel , the inpetus for that was not a technical

deci si on; correct?
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A It was the Director's decision. | do not know
what the i npetus was.

Q Do you believe that it was a technica
deci si on?

A. | don't know.

Q Do you recall the deposition that | took of
you a coupl e of weeks ago, Jennifer?

A, Yes.

Q And in that deposition | asked what the
i npetus was for changing froma steady state nodel to a
transi ent nodel in 2023. Do you recall that?

A.  Not specifically.

Q Ckay. WwWell, we'll cone back to that in a
m nute. Were you told why the adm ni strative deci sion
to change froma steady state nodel to a transient nodel
was i nplenented in 20237

A. M understanding is that it is because of
direction that the -- direction fromthe court that the
wat er needs to be provided during the irrigation season
at the tine and place that it's needed.

Q And who told you that it was the court that
di rected that change?

A. | believe Gary Spackman said that.

Q Wen we first were at the Departnent, you

under st ood that the ESPAM npdel was a transi ent nodel;
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Is that true?

A.  The ESPAM nodel can run simul ations in steady
state or in transient.

Q Ckay. And the ESPAM nodel has al ways been
able to run a transient output; correct?

A. Yes, previous versions of ESPAM could al so run
a transient sinmulation.

Q And the current version of the ESPAM nodel, do
you recall when it was inplenmented or created?

A. I'msorry. Can you repeat the question?

Q Yep. The current version of the ESPAM nodel
it's -- maybe 1'll do it this way, is 2.2; is that true?

A, Yes.

Q And ESPAM2. 2 when did it first exist?

A It was finalized in May of 2021.

Q The current version of ESPAM2 is finalized in
May of 2021. And the prior version was ESPAM2. 1;
correct?

A.  Yes.

Q And when was ESPAMR. 1 finalized?

A It was either the end of 2012 or early in
2013.

Q Oay. So roughly in 2013 when ESPAM2. 1 was
updated fromthe prior version, it was calibrated using

nonthly stress periods in half-nonth tine steps; is that
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true?

A, Yes.

Q And the current version of ESPAM2. 2 al so uses
monthly stress periods in half-nonth tinme steps;
correct?

A, Yes.

Q So prior to 2023, the npdel was capabl e of
predi cting an i n-season anount of water that could be
expected in the near Bl ackfoot to M nidoka reach; is
that true?

A.  Yes.

Q Because the current version has been able to
do that since roughly 2013; correct?

A Wll, | wouldn't say the current version, but
t he previous version, 2.1 could, yes.

Q Okay. But there is nothing that changed
between 2.1 and the 2.2 version that makes the nonthly
stress period and the half-nonth tine step different
froma transi ent nodel standpoint?

A. The time discretization did not change between
ESPAM Ver si on 2.1 and ESPAM Ver si on 2. 2.

Q So effectively ESPAM2. 2 has al ways been a
t ransi ent nodel ?

AL I'msorry. Repeat that?

Q So ESPAM 2 and 2.1 -- we'll just say it this
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way. So ESPAM2. 1 and ESPAMR2. 2 has al ways been a
transi ent nodel; correct?

A. They were both calibrated as transi ent nodel s,
yes.

Q ay. In 2023, you understood the difference
bet ween t he nodel output for transient versus steady
state output; correct?

A, Yes.

Q And you al so understood in 2013, ten years
prior, the difference between the nodel output for
transi ent versus steady state output; correct?

A, Yes.

Q And since 2013, there were curtail nent orders
in the surface water delivery call; correct?

A.  Yes.

Q Yet they all used the steady state output;
isn't that true?

A. Yes, a steady state sinulation was used.

Q Ckay. Even though ESPAMR. 1 starting in 2013
t hrough 2021 had the nonthly stress periods and
hal f-nmonth tine steps capable of being ran in the
transi ent node?

A.  Yes.

(Exhi bit 318 nmarked.)
Q (BY Ms. MHUGH) Could | have you | ook at
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Exhi bit 318. Jennifer, can you identify this exhibit?

AL It's a presentation titled "Surface Water
Coal i ti on Met hodol ogy - calculation of priority dates
for curtail nment of ground water users.”

Q Is it a PowerPoint presentation that you
prepar ed?

A, Yes.

Q And the date being Novenber 28, 20227?

A.  Yes.

Q And did you provide this Power Poi nt
presentation to the Surface Water Coalition technical
wor ki ng group?

A, Yes.

Q Jennifer, is the exhibit in front of you, does
it have page nunbers on it or slide nunmbers?

A No.

Q Ckay. And so for ease of exam nation, |I'm
going to have you |ike have to thunmb through, and I wll
say like Slide 6, which would essentially be the sixth
page of that exhibit. Does that nake sense?

A.  Yes.

Q Ckay. And if you would just | ook at that
Exhi bit 318, is it conplete? 1Is it conpletely your
Power Poi nt presentation, are all the slides in that?

A. | don't know. | don't have every page
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menori zed, so | wouldn't be able to just be able to | ook
at it and know what was mn ssi ng.

Q Fair enough. Gay. Can you tell ne how many
pages it is, just so |I'm naking sure we have the sane
exhi bit?

A. | have 22 pages.

Q GCkay. And mne has 22 pages, soO we're good.
Ckay. Before we get into the actual pages there, just a
little bit of background. Are you aware that there has
been a noratoriumon new wells without mtigation, so
new wells on the Eastern Snake Pl ain Aquifer since the
early 1990s?

A, Yes.

Q So alnpbst all the wells that w t hdraw wat er
fromthe Eastern Snake Pl ain Aquifer have been punping
for at | east 30 years, and sone much | onger than that;
correct?

A. | believe that's correct, yes.

Q Ckay. And if you could look at Slide No. 6 of
your Exhibit 318. And Slide No. 6 is a graph that talks
about, that shows the steady state conditions. 1Is that
what you see there?

AL It's the tine to reach the steady state
response.

Q GCkay. And isn't it true that between 90
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percent and 99 percent of the inpacts of all ESPA
punmpi ng on the Snake River flows have been realized?

A.  Yes.

Q And that's what this Slide No. 6 of Exhibit
318 shows that; correct?

A. Yes, it states that in the bullet.

M5. McHUGH Ckay. At this point, | guess |
woul d offer Exhibit 318 as an exhibit, or an offer into
t he record.

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER:  Any obj ecti ons?

Heari ng none, the docunent narked as Exhi bit
318 is received into evidence.

(Exhibit 318 received into evidence.)

Q (BY M. MHUGH) Jennifer, continuing on with
Exhibit 318, if you could ook at Slide No. 13.

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER: Ms. McHugh, it m ght be
hel pful rather than just giving us nunbers, if sonehow
we camidentify a title on the page, since the pages are
not nunber ed.

M5. McHUGH  Yes, fair enough.

Q (BY Ms. MHU&G) So on Slide 13, can you read

the title of that page?

A.  "Conparison of priority dates cal cul ated for
April demand shortfall forecasts for May 1 curtail nent.”
Q And if you recall, and if you need to | ook
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back at Exhibit 301, which is the 2023 As- Applied O der.
Do you recall the anmobunt of water that was forecasted to
be short in the 2022 season?

A.  Yes.

Q And that nunber is roughly 75,000 acre-feet;
Is that right?

A.  Yeah, 75,200 acre-feet.

Q GCkay. And if you |look at page No. 13, it
says, "Conparison of priority dates calculated.” |If you
| ook at that graph, based on this slide, curtail nent of
wells junior to sonetine in the m d-1980s woul d produce
roughly 75,200 acre-feet to the near Bl ackfoot to
M ni doka reach of the Snake R ver in steady state; is
that right?

A. Can you --

Q If you look at the yellow |line?

A. So, yeah, if you are |l ooking at the yell ow
line, a steady state curtail ment, which would be a
continuous curtailnment to the sane date every year wth
a priority date in the m d-1980s woul d produce
approxi mately 75,000 acre-feet.

Q So in other words, would you agree that if
wells junior to the m d-1980s had never started punping,
t here woul d be an additional 75,200 acre-feet in the

river in 20237
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A. Assunming all other aquifer and recharge and
di scharge occurred the sane over those years, then, yes,
there shoul d be approximately that additional volune in
the reach, in the river reach.

Q And as a result, without the punping of those
wells junior to the m d-1980s, there would be no
f orecast shortage for the Surface Water Coalition

menbers in 2023; correct?

A.  Yes.
Q Oay. I'mjust going to switch gears for a
brief monment. In roughly August of 2022, the Director

notified the parties that he was convening a technical
wor ki ng group regarding the Surface Water Coalition
delivery call; is that your understandi ng?

A.  Yes.

Q And how were you notified or told that there
was going to be this technical working group?

A. | was told by Matt Anders.

Q GCkay. And did you know whi ch people were told
or asked to, or invited to be part of the technical
wor ki ng group?

A No.

Q Wo nmade the decision on who woul d be invited
to participate in the technical working group?

A. | don't know.
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Q And when did you first becone aware of who was
invited to participate in the technical working group?

A. | don't know that | was ever aware of who was
invited. M only know edge is of who was in attendance
when | gave the presentation. And | doubt that | even
recall who all was in attendance. But | am aware of
sone of the attendees.

Q Ckay. And when you gave your presentation,
which | think you are referring to Exhibit 318, the
Power Point. Did you do that via Zoom or sone other
renote nmeeting format?

A. | gave the presentation from our conference
roons. But there were sone attendees in person and sone
that were participating renotely.

Q Ckay. And then did you provide the Power Poi nt
presentation to the technical working group via the
Departnent's website; is that how peopl e got the
I nf ormati on?

A. | presented it in the neeting, and |
believe -- and | gave a PDF version to Matt Anders, that
| believe he sent out to the technical working group.
But | did not personally send it out.

Q Ckay. Coming back to Slide 13 in Exhibit 318.
This year the Director predicted that approxi mately

75, 200 acre-feet of shortfall was going to Twn Falls
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Canal Conpany. |If you | ook at your graph there on Slide
13 of Exhibit 318, it shows the difference in the nunber
of acres that would be curtailed using a transient nodel
versus a steady state nodel; correct?

A.  Yes, you can determ ne that information by
conparing the different points on this graph.

Q GCkay. And then I think in your presentation
you also -- well, let's just stick with this slide
first. |If you |look at the graph there, it shows that in
order to get 75,000 acre-feet to Twin Falls Canal
Conpany using a steady state nodel, the nunber of acres
that would be curtailed is approximately 75,000 acres.
Do you see that, or would you agree with that?

A. |If you curtailed to the m d-1980s, the acres
curtail ed woul d be sonewhere in that ballpark, yes.

Q Ckay. And that would show roughly 75, 000
acre-feet to the near Bl ackfoot to M ni doka reach;
correct?

A Wll, it would show that that woul d get
there -- that that would be the | ong-term annual average
if that curtail ment occurred continuously every year.

Q Oay. And if you also |look at that graph, in
order to get 75,000 acre-feet of water to Twin Falls
Canal Conpany during this season in a transient state

nodel, it would require the curtail ment of approxinmately
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700, 000 acres; is that correct?
A. That's correct.
So nearly ten tinmes as nany acres; correct?

Roughl y, yes.

O > O

Ckay. Were there any di scussi ons on whet her
t hat was a reasonabl e out cone?

| think that was di scussed, yes.

And was it discussed wth you?

To sone extent, yes.

And t he concl usi on was what ?

o > O »

A. The conclusion | think is evident in the
Director's order was that the conclusion was that the
requirenent is to get the water to the reach during this
irrigation season and that that was the deciding factor.

Q Ckay. So you agree that in order to get
75,000 acre-feet of water to Twin Falls Canal Conpany
during this irrigation season needing to curtail 700, 000
acres i s a reasonabl e outconme?

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER:  Okay. Ms. McHugh, |
Wil insert and just state that this |line of questioning
is not one that Ms. Sukow is qualified to answer.

And I'Il instruct the witness not to answer
t he question. That was not her assignnent in devel oping
the data and producing the report that she produced.

M5. McHUGH  Ckay.
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(Exhi bit 305 nmarked.)

Q (BY Ms. McHUGH) Ms. Sukow, could |I have you
| ook at Exhibit 305. And can you identify Exhibit 305
for the record?

A. "Final Oder Regarding April 2022 Forecast
Supply."”

Q And did you assist the Director in preparing
any portion of the April '22 forecast supply?

A. | calculated a curtailnment priority date using
t he ESPA ground water flow nodel, and | cal cul ated, |
believe in this one, yes, a proportionate share for
A& Blrrigation District.

Q Gkay. And if I'mcorrect, the Director
predicted that Twin Falls Canal Conpany would be short
approxi mately 162,000 acre-feet in that order; is that
correct?

A. It says 162,600 acre-feet.

Q Ckay. And if you look at Exhibit 318, back to
Slide No. 13. How many acres would be curtailed in a
steady state nodel run to supply 162,000 acre-feet of
short age?

A. It's sonmewhere around 150,000 to 170,000 acres
per haps.

Q GCkay. And if you were to run that same nunber

with transi ent nodel output, how many acres woul d be
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curtail ed, approximtely?

A. Approxi mately 940, 000 acres.

Q Ckay. And if you could turn to Slide No. 15.
If 1"'mlooking at Slide No. 15 -- do you have that
t her e?

A, Yes.

Q And could you give ne the title of that slide?

A. "Predicted response to May 1 curtail nent of
water rights junior to Cctober 11, 1900."

Q And this slide shows that if you curtail ed
back to a 1900 priority date, the April to Septenber
accrual to the reach that supplies Twn Falls Cana

Conpany woul d be approximately 97, 700 acre-feet; is that

correct?
A.  Yes.
Q Isn't it true that if you curtail all the

ground water users starting May 1lst of any given year,
t hat the maxi num anount of water that accrued that
season woul d be 97,700 acre-feet to that reach?

A. That is the predicted volune to accrue from
curtailing all of the ground water users junior to
Cct ober 11th, 1900 within the area of comon ground
wat er supply.

M5. McHUGH Ckay. | don't have any further

questions. Thank you, Jennifer.
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THE HEARI NG OFFI CER: Okay. Thank you,
Ms. MHugh.
M5. McHUGH: | would just ask that Exhibits
300, 301, and 305 be admitted. | realize they are the
Director's orders in this case, and then the order from

| ast year. But | think for
hel pf ul
THE HEARI NG OFFI CER
adm ssi on
and 3057
MR FLETCHER
THE HEARI NG OFFI CER

docunents nunbered 301,

of the docunents marked as Exhi bit 301,

ease of examning it is

to have themin as exhibits.

Any objection to the
302,

No obj ecti ons.

Heari ng no obj ections,

302, 305 are received into

evi dence.

MR BRICKER | just want to clarify.

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER:  Yes.

MR BRICKER Was it 300 to 301, or 301 and
3027

THE HEARING OFFICER:  |'m sorry. | ' m assum ng
that it's 300, 301 --

MS. McHUGH 300, 301, and 305.

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER:  And 305. And |
m sstated. Thank you.

( Exhi bi ts 300, 301,

evi dence.)

305 received into

000059




© 00 N o o b~ wWw N P

[ N R S N A N A C R LS R e e o T e N e B o B e B e B o R )
o b~ W N P O © 00 N o O »d w N B+, O

Hearing - Vol. | - June 6, 2023 60

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER  Ckay. Anything further,
Ms. MHugh?

M5. McHUGH  Nothing further. Thank you.

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER:  Ckay. Thank you.

It's 10:30. We've been engaged for an
hour-and-a-half. Do you the parties want a break,
shoul d we continue wth another set of questions?
Anybody?

Let's forge ahead. Who's next.

MS. KLAHN: | have a couple of questions. |
was trying to send then to Candice, but it didn't work.

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER Ms. Kl ahn.

CROSS- EXAM NATI ON
QUESTI ONS BY Ms. KLAHN:

Q Good norning, Jennifer. M nane is Sarah
Klahn. | represent the Cty of Pocatello. | wanted to
ask you about sone things related to the nodeling
questions that Candice was asking you. And | want to

back up a step and ask you a little bit about nodel

calibration. |Is that sonething you are involved with?
A.  Yes.
Q Ckay. In the framework of nodel calibration,

is one of the inputs you use to conpile the return flows
associated wwth Twn Falls Canal Company?

A. Indirectly they are used to calculate. Their
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return flows are used in the calculation of the Kinberly
to King H Il reach gain, which is used in the
cal i brati on.

Q GCkay. And is that because the calibration
i nvol ves understandi ng reach gains that cone from ESPA
di scharges versus reach gains that accrue fromreturn
flows fromthe south side, where Twn Falls is | ocated?

A, Yes.

Q Ckay. So when you are conpiling these, you
woul d subtract themfromthe reach gains comng fromthe
north side in order to get the correct relationship; is
that true?

A. No, that's not correct.

Q GCkay. Can you tell ne what is correct?

A. So the reach gain fromthe north side the
target for that is calculated by taking the inflow gage
at Kinberly, the outflow -- and so the river flow at
Ki mberly, the river flow at King H Il going out of that
reach. And then addi ng or deducting adjustnments for all
of the other surface flows that occur in between there,
and the inflow fromthe south side.

Q Ckay.

A So it's not an adjustnent to the ESPA
di scharge. The ESPA discharge is the reach gain. It's

just used to cal culate how nuch of what's in the river
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in that reach, you know, there is other conponents in
the river flows at that reach. So we have to adjust to
t hem adjust those out to know what our target is for

t he ESPA di schar ge.

Q Ckay. Thank you for that explanation. Can
you confirmthat the total anmount of return fl ows
associated with Twn Falls Canal Conpany that you're
using in that mani pul ati on you just described, is

bet ween about 300, 000 and 400, 000 during the irrigation

season?
A. | don't recall. | would have to | ook at ny
spreadsheet to -- | don't have that nunber, that vol une

nmenori zed.

Q Have you evaluated any long-termtrends in
Twin Falls return flows as part of your calibration
efforts for the nodel ?

A. Oh, we don't need to do that for the nodel,
because we're | ooking at the past. So we just | ook at
t he neasured data that occurred and subtract that off
when we're cal cul ati ng the reach gai n.

Q But in the spreadsheet you are describing, it
woul d i ncl ude sources of water fromthe Twin Falls

systemthat are contributing the return flows?

A. Wll, it includes the neasurenents nade at the

| ocati ons where those returns occur.

000062




© 00 N o o b~ wWw N P

[ N R S N A N A C R LS R e e o T e N e B o B e B e B o R )
o b~ W N P O © 00 N o O »d w N B+, O

Hearing - Vol. | - June 6, 2023 63

Q |Is seasonality any part of the eval uation that
you do when you are doing that?

A Well, we use nonthly data, so the seasonality
is inherent in those nonthly averages.

MS. KLAHN: Ckay. Thank you. That's all |
have.
THE HEARI NG OFFI CER: Okay. Further
questions? | thought | saw a hand up.
M . Budge.
CROSS- EXAM NATI ON
QUESTI ONS BY MR BUDCE:

Q Thank you, Ms. Sukow. |'m TJ Budge, on behalf
of the Idaho Ground Water Appropriators. | wll try not
to duplicate the questions you got from Ms. MHugh.

Jennifer, you are the | ead ground water
nodel er with the Departnent?

A. That's not officially ny title, but...

Q D d you provide all of the nodeling work that
was utilized in the Fifth Methodol ogy O der?

A. | provided the nodeling work that was
presented to the techni cal working group and the
Director that was used | think as a basis for that, yes.

Q Was there other nodeling work that was created
in the Departnent that you did not provide to the

techni cal wor ki ng group?
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A No.

Q Gkay. And if the Director wanted to know any
nodel i ng i ssues related to the Fifth Methodol ogy O der,
you're the one who woul d have produced that infornmation?

A. To ny know edge, yes.

Q Okay. In terns of the initiation of the
revi ew of the Fourth Met hodol ogy Order, that decision
came fromthe Director; correct?

A ' msorry. Repeat the question.

Q The decision to review the Fourth Methodol ogy
Order, that canme fromthe Director?

A.  That's ny under st andi ng.

Q You didn't tell the Director that there had
been sone change in the nodeling data that necessitated
a change to the nethodol ogy order?

A No.

Q And the nodeling work that you did on the
Fourth Met hodol ogy Order, that cane at the direction of
the Director or Matt Anders?

A. | was directed by Matt Anders to do that, yes.

Q Ckay. So if Matt told you to do sone type of
nodel i ng, then you perforned that at his direction?

A.  Yes, and he was the one who communi cated to ne
what the Director wanted ne to nodel.

Q Understood. And if Matt told you not to do
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sone type of nodeling, then you would not have done
t hat ?

A. He told ne what nodeling -- or told ne what
questions they wanted to address, and | did the
nmodeling. | wasn't directed not to do any nodel i ng.

Q CGot you. You did not go outside the scope of
the instructions that Matt had gi ven you?

A No.

(Exhi bit 914 nmarked.)

Q (BY MR BUDGE) GCkay. |If you could turn to
Exhi bit 914.

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER°  We shoul d have two
conmon exhibit binders. 914, M. Budge?
MR, BUDGE: Yes.

Q (BY MR BUDGE) Jennifer, do you recognize
t hat docunent ?

A.  Yes.

Q Could you read the title for the record?

A. "Comments on behalf" -- oh, | mght be
on -- what did you say?

Q 914.

A. Okay. Never mnd. "Coments on Behalf of the

Coalition of Cities and the City of Pocatello on the
| daho Departnent of Resources Sunmary of Reconmmended

Techni cal Revisions to the Fourth Anended Fi nal Order
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Regar di ng Met hodol ogy for Determining Material Injury to
Reasonabl e | n- Season Demand and Reasonabl e Carryover for
the Surface Water Coalition,"” by Kara Ferguson and Matt
Anders, on Decenber 23, 2022.

MR. BUDGE: Gkay. Director, could we go off
the record for a nonent?

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER  Yes.

(Of the record.)

MR, BUDGE: Back on the record.

Q (BY MR BUDGE) Jennifer, before we went off
the record, you had read the title of what | think is
Exhibit 915; is that correct?

A. That's correct.

Q Wiy don't you go ahead and read the title of
9147

A. "Summary of Recommended Technical Revisions to
t he Fourth Anmended Fi nal Order Regardi ng Met hodol ogy for
Determining Material Injury to Reasonabl e | n- Season
Demand and Reasonabl e Carryover for the Surface Water
Coalition.™

Q Do you recogni ze that docunent?

A.  Yes.

Q Is this a docunent the Departnent staff
prepared in connection with its work on the Fifth

Met hodol ogy Order?
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A. It was prepared by Kara Ferguson and Matt
Anders.

Q And you did not participate in drafting that
docunent ?

A. | did not draft or edit the docunent.

Q Ckay. |If you could turn to Exhibit 3187
Jennifer, this is the presentation that you gave to the
techni cal working group; is that right?

A. That's correct.

Q And ny understanding is that this
presentation, along with the underlying data that was
posted to the Departnent's website, that consists of all
of the nodeling work you did related to devel opnent of
the Fifth Met hodol ogy Order?

A.  Yes.

Q Oay. You didn't do any nodeling work after
t hat presentation was given, but prior to the issuance
of the Fifth Methodol ogy Order?

A. Not for this issue, no.

Q Wat issues did you do nodeling work?

A Well, I'mdoing nodeling work all the tine.
That was a pretty vague questi on.

Q Not related to the Fifth Methodol ogy Order?

A. Not related to the Fifth Methodol ogy O der.

Q Thank you, | appreciate that. |1'mgoing to
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shift gears just briefly.

Duri ng your deposition we di scussed an
irrigated | ands dataset that's used in the ESPA nodel;
correct?

A. Yes, | believe we did.

Q And can you explain what that dataset consists
of ?

A. The irrigated | ands datasets that we're
currently using in nodel calibration are devel oped by
IDWR s A S staff. And they delineate what -- they
del i neate | ands as being either irrigated, or
sem -irrigated or non-irrigated by using a variety of
dat a sources.

Q \Wiat are the data sources they utilize to nmake
t hose desi gnati ons?

A. Sone of the data sources are the CDL commpn

| and unit pol ygons. They use Landsat phot ography. They

use aerial photography. They use, | should say, Landsat
imges. | believe they sonetines refer to the netric ET
images. | don't do that work nyself. So there may be
ot her data sources that I'mnot aware of that they | ook
at .

Q Oay. And that dataset identifies for each
irrigated field, whether it's ground water irrigated or

whether it's irrigated or non-irrigated?
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A. Yes, they have three cl assifications;
irrigated, non-irrigated, or sem -irrigated, which neans
part of it mght be irrigated and part of it not. There
are areas where typically there are devel oped areas.

You m ght have a subdivision with houses and | awns and
roads. And it's too tine consumng an effort to
del i neate each of those little polygons. So they |unp
t hem al t oget her.

Q Howis this dataset used in the aquifer nodel ?

A. It is used to calcul ate aquifer recharge and
di scharge in conjunction with ET data and precipitation
data. So it's used to calculate the irrigation denand.

Q Could that dataset be used wthin a particul ar
geographic area just to identify the total nunber of
irrigated acres?

A.  Yes.

Q And is that the best dataset avail able for use
in the nodel for the purpose for which it's used?

A. That is the best dataset we have for nodel
cal i bration, yes.

Q Ckay. Let ne ask you about anot her conponent
of the nodel that we discussed during your deposition,
whi ch you referred to as the ground water fraction.
Coul d you descri be what that term nmeans?

A. So the ground water source fraction is so
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sone -- you know, sone of the irrigated | ands have only
surface water supply. Sonme have only ground water
supply. But sone have both, and we call that m xed
source. And within that m xed source, we need to
estimate what fraction of that is supplied by surface
wat er, and what fraction is supplied by ground water.

Q And how is that dataset created?

A. The original dataset and the -- | guess |
should clarify that dataset also includes zeros and ones
for things that are entirely supplied by surface water
ask ground water. That dataset was initially produced
by IWRRI for a previous version of ESPAM So | don't
have direct know edge of how t hey produced it.

Q GCkay. And howis that dataset used in ESPAM?

A. It is used to -- the irrigation denmand that we
calculate fromthe irrigated | ands ET and precipitation,
it is used to assign that to either surface water
di versions or ground water punping. So it's used to
estimate, you know, which source of supply provides
t hat .

Q Oay. And is that the best dataset avail able
to you for use in the nodel for distinguishing between
land that's irrigated with surface water, ground water,
or a conbination?

A. It is the best dataset we have, yeah.
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Q GCkay. | want to just ask a few fol |l ow up
questi ons about the change froma steady state to
transient state application of the nodel in this case
just to make sure | understand.

The nodel was capabl e of being used in a
transient state at the tine the Fourth Methodol ogy Order
was i ssued?

A, Yes.

Q Could the nodel also be run at a transient
state when the Third Met hodol ogy Order was issued?

A.  Yes.

Q How about the Second Met hodol ogy Order?

A. | think you may be getting beyond what -- |
don't know the dates of those orders. |If there was a
versi on of ESPAM avail abl e at those dates, then it was
capabl e of running the transient sinulation.

Q Oay. So if ESPAM was utilized, then it was
capabl e of being run in a transient state?

A.  Yes.

Q Okay. So the Director's decision to change
froma steady state to transient state was not based on
a change in nodel capabilities; correct?

A. The nodel capabilities with respect to being
able to run a transient sinulation did not change.

Q GCkay. So it would have been a policy decision
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of the Director?

A, Yes.

Q Let ne just ask a few questions about the
presentation you gave to the technical working group. |
bel i eve you have that in front of you. It's Exhibit
318. If you'll please turn to page 20 of that exhibit.
And this slide is | abel ed "Conpari son of priority dates
cal cul ated using transient and steady state anal yses."
Do you have the that in front of you, Jennifer?

A.  Yes.

Q As | understand this slide, it provides a
conpari son of the nunmber of acres that would be
curtailed under a steady state application of the nodel
versus a transient state application of the nodel under
different curtail nent scenari os?

A.  Yes.

Q And this data was prepared to show t hose who
participated in the technical working group, that a
transient state application results in exponentially
nore acres being curtailed in response to a predicted
demand shortfall than under a steady state; is that
correct?

A It is approximately one order of nagnitude,
yes.

Q Ckay. Let ne have you go back to page 15 of
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that exhibit. This slide is titled "Predicted response
to May 1 curtailnment of water rights junior to October
11, 1900." Yes?

A. Ckay. Just to clarify, because there is two
in a rowthat have that title. 1Is it the bar chart or
the Iine graph?

Q The line graph.

A. Ckay.

Q And thank you for that clarification. |
appreci ate that.

Ms. McHugh may have asked you this, so | don't
mean to be repetitious. But can you explain why the
date October 11th, 1900 is sel ected?

A. | asked Matt Anders what the, you know,
controlling priority date was. And ny under st andi ng
fromhimis that Twin Falls Canal Conpany and North Side
Canal Conmpany have natural flow rights to the Snake
River wwth that priority date. So any ground -- you
know, there is sone small anount of ground water use
that is senior to that. And, obviously, they weren't
included in the curtail nent scenari os, because they are
senior to the delivery call water right.

Q The nunber of ground water rights senior to
that 1900 date is very, very small; is that right?

A It's pretty small.
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Q Cenerally speaking, a 1900 curtail nent date
Wil result in curtail ment of every ground water right
fromthe Eastern Snake Plain Aquifer?

A Well, again, like | said, there are sone that
are senior, and there are sone that are outside the area

of common ground water supply, which would not be

subject to adm nistration and so -- but it would
be -- it would be a very | arge percentage of -- yes.
Q And you've got a slide. | don't have the

nunber in front of me. But a slide that shows that with
an Cctober 11th, 1900 curtail nent date, there would be
941,400 curtailed acres; is that right?

A.  That sounds right. Wat | recall is it's
approxi mately 941, 000. Yeah, 941, 400.

Q Ckay. So just to connect the dots. Your
transi ent nodeling shows that anytine there is a
predi cted denmand shortfall of 97,700 acre-feet or nore,
in the absence of mtigation, you would have curtail nent
of 941, 400 acres?

A.  Approximately, yes.

Q Ckay. Let ne have you flip forward again to
page 20. W reviewed this a nonent ago. But on the
right side of the table, it conpares the nunber of acres
that would be curtailed under the transient state

application of the nodel versus a steady state. These
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are aquifer wde figures, or naybe to be nore precise,
this is the area within -- this is within the area of
common ground water supply?

A.  Yes.

Q D d you analyze what the transient state reach
gains would be fromcurtail ment ground water district by
ground water district before the Fifth Methodol ogy O der
was i ssued?

A. Not for this, not in connection with the Fifth
Met hodol ogy Order.

Q Had you done that in connection with other
nodel i ng wor k?

A. And | can't recall exactly what | did. But I
was asked to do sone nodeling in support of the
settl enent discussions between the parties. And |
recall | was asked to do sonething by ground water
district. And | don't recall exactly what | did, or how
it would or would not fit in wth what you just asked in
your question. But it was not for this proceedi ng.

Q GCkay. Were you aware prior to when the Fifth
Met hodol ogy Order was issued, were you aware of the
different transient state i npacts by ground water
district on the near Bl ackfoot to M nidoka reach?

A. | nean, yes, I'maware of different inpacts

fromdifferent |ocations in the aquifer, certainly.
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(Exhi bit 197 marked.)

Q (BY MR BUDGE) Let ne have you turn to
Exhibit 197. Jennifer, do you recognize this docunent?
It's | abeled "Attachment 1, | GM Proportionate Share
Model i ng, May 2023 Curtail ment"?

A. | believe | did see this in one of the expert
reports that was submtted.

Q This was a docunent prepared by Jaxon Hi ggs.
And | just want to ask if you are famliar with any of
the data that's in here. And nmaybe what 1'Il do is |'II
just note in the colum | abeled "I DWR Portion of April
2023 Predicted Demand Shortfall,” there is actually two
colums there. There is an acre-foot colum and a

percentage colum. And if you go to the bottom of the

acre-foot colum, you'll see the figure 63, 645
acre-feet. Do you see that figure?
A.  Yes.

Q You understand that that represents |G\ s
proportionate share of the total predicted denand
shortfall of 75,200 acre-feet?

A.  Yes.

Q And then if you go to the next bl ock of
colums on the right, kind of in the mddle of the
spreadsheet. There is a colum that says, "Transient

May to Septenber Inpact.” And that's showing the May to
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Sept enber reach gains fromnear Bl ackfoot to M ni doka
reach fromcurtail nent in each of those districts. Do
you see that col um?

A. | see that col um.

Q Are you famliar with the data that's shown in
that columm that shows the reach gains attributable to
curtailment within each ground water district?

A. | did not develop that, those colums. That
anal ysis | believe was done by Jaxon.

Q Is this an analysis that you' ve done
i ndependently for other purposes, or it's just part of
your general nodeling work for the Departnent?

A. | have not done that analysis for -- | did not
do that analysis for this priority date, no.

Q Ckay. Have you done that for other
curtail nent dates?

A |1 don't think I did it for any curtail ment
dat es, no.

Q Have you done that analysis in any other
cont ext ?

A. Again, | did sone sort of analysis by ground
wat er district for the discussions in the settl enent
talks. And | don't recall exactly what | did. | did
not review that in preparation for this hearing.

Q Gkay. So | understand this is Jaxon's
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analysis. But if you |look at that columm, naybe we'll
go to the bottomline for North Snake G ound Water
District. It shows that curtail nent of every water
right junior to 1900 in North Snake G ound Water
District would curtail 217,000 acre-feet. And the
transi ent benefit to near Bl ackfoot to M ni doka reach
from May to Septenber would be 0.06 acre-feet.

Were you generally famliar, or did you
understand prior to when the Fifth Methodol ogy Order was
i ssued, that curtailnment of water rights in North Snake
G ound Water District would provide essentially no reach
gains to the Coalition?

A. During this irrigation season, | didn't do the
anal ysis. But, yes, you would expect that.

Q Ckay. So Jaxon's figures are consistent with
your general understanding of the transient inpacts by
ground water district?

A. Yes, they are consistent with ny general
under st andi ng.  Yes.

Q Thank you. During your work related to
devel opnent of the Fifth Methodol ogy Order, did you ever
inform Matt Anders or the Director that curtailnment in
pl aces li ke North Snake, Henry's Fork, Madison are
likely or at |east predicted to provide little if any

benefit to the Coalition?
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AL Well, they will provide benefits in future
years in years of -- so they do provide |ong-term
benefits. And they do have long-terminpacts on the
water in the river reach. So if you don't include them
t hen you are putting the -- you are basically shifting
the responsibility for the shortfall to those users that
are closest to the reach, and have the nobst inmmedi ate
I mpact, even though the inpacts have been caused by
decades of punping of people that are al so further away.
So we did have sone discussion about that at some point.

Q Oay. And as part of that discussion, did you
explain that there wouldn't be any benefit in terns of
mtigating the predicted demand shortfall for 20237

A. | don't recall whether or not we specifically
di scussed that .

Q GCkay. So to your know edge was i nformation
provided to the Director before he issued the Fifth
Met hodol ogy Order that woul d have nmade hi m aware t hat
curtailnment in North Snake Ground Water District, Carey
Vall ey Gound Water District, Henry's Fork G ound \Water
District, and Madi son G ound Water District would
provi de no reach gain benefits to the Coalition in 20237

A. | was not asked to provide any anal ysis by
ground water districts for the Fifth Methodol ogy O der.

So, no, he would not have had that specific infornmation
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by ground water district.

Q Ckay. Aside fromthat information being
specific to a ground water district, did you advise the
Director that just generally speaking curtailnment in
t hese further away | ocati ons woul d not provide any
benefit to the Coalition in 20237

A | don't recall.

Q To your know edge the Director did not have
t he benefit of this type of information before himwhen
he i ssued the Fifth Methodol ogy O der?

A. | don't know.

(Exhi bit 929 nmarked.)

Q (BY VR BUDGE) GCkay. Let ne have you turn
next to the Exhibit 929. Jennifer, this is a copy of
| DAPA 37.03. 11, the Rules for Conjunctive Managenent of
Surface and Ground Water Resources. Do you have that in
front of you?

A.  Yes.

Q W refer to these generally as the Conjunctive
Managenent Rules. Are you famliar with these rul es?

A.  To sone extent.

Q I'mjust going to draw your attention to page
4 -- excuse ne -- page 5. Do you see Rule 20.03?

A, Yes.

Q If you can just take a nonent to read Rul es
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20.03 and 20.04. And let nme know if you are famliar

wth these rul es?

A. (Wtness conplying.) I'mfamliar with them
to the extent that |I'maware they exist.

Q Oay. I'll draw your attention to the | ast
sentence in Rule 20.03, and I'll read that. It says,

"An appropriator is not entitled to command the entirety
of large volunmes of water in a surface or ground water
source to support his appropriation contrary to the
public policy of reasonable use of water as described in
this rule.”

Were you asked to do any ground water nodeling
related to the disparity and -- let nme strike that
questi on.

Did this rule ever cone up in your discussions
with Matt Anders or other Departnent staff relative to
t he devel opnment of the Fifth Methodol ogy O der?

A. | did not discuss those types of |egal aspects
wth them no.

Q GCkay. And Rule 20.04 refers to the futile
call doctrine. D d that ever conme up in your
di scussions with Matt Anders or other Departnent staff
relative to the devel opnent of the Fifth Methodol ogy
Order?

A. Not that | recall, no.
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Q So you perfornmed no anal ysis of the magnitude
of curtailnment conpared to the predicted benefit to the
Surface Water Coalition?

A Well, | did present the nmagnitude of
curtail ment conpared to the benefit of curtail ment.

That data are in Exhibit 318.

Q Ckay. Aside from page 20 of Exhibit 318, you
didn't do any other analysis that conpares the magnitude
of curtailnment to the predicted benefit to the
Coal i tion?

A No.

Q Are you famliar wth the concept of a
trimine that has been used in delivery calls?

A, Yes.

Q Can you explain what you understand that term
to nmean?

A. M understanding is it's an area designation
that identifies -- it identifies an area beyond whi ch
the i npacts of punping are de mnims to the reach of
I nt erest.

Q Oay. D d the concept of a trinline ever cone
up in your work related to the Fifth Methodol ogy Order?

A. Again, | don't recall discussing a trimine
With respect to this proceeding.

Q So you didn't ask Matt Anders or the Director
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if that's sonething you should | ook into?

A. Not that | recall

Q And neither of theminstructed you not to
eval uate trimines?

A. No, | don't recall receiving any instruction
about trimines.

Q Ckay. Let ne next have you turn to Exhibit
301. This is what we called an As-Applied O der of the
April 2023 As-Applied Order. | believe Ms. McHugh asked
you sone questions about this docunent. This is
sonething you are famliar with, M. Sukow?

A, Yes.

Q If you'll flip to page 5. At the bottom of
page 5 there is a footnote, Footnote 5. And it
identifies the proportionate mitigation obligation of
| GMA as 63,645 acre-feet. |Is that a calcul ation that
you made usi ng the nodel ?

A.  Yes.

Q As you know | GM is nmade up of several ground
wat er districts. Before the Fourth Methodol ogy O der
was i ssued, had you cal cul ated each i ndivi dual ground
wat er districts proportionate share of that 63, 645
acre-foot figure?

A. | don't refer to it as a proportionate share,

because they did not -- they didn't have mtigation
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pl ans. But our attorney, Garrick Baxter, asked ne to
cal cul ate the percentage of |GM s proporti onate share
that coul d be assigned to each ground water district, |
believe, in a response to a request that was made by
yoursel f or one of the other attorneys.

Q Yes. Thank you.

(Exhi bit 126 marked.)

Q (BY MR BUDGE) If you could turn to Exhibit
126.

A. | don't have that one.

MR FLETCHER 1267
MR BUDGE: Yes, 126.

Q (BY MR BUDGE) Jennifer, what | have in front
of me is Exhibit 126 is an email from Garrick Baxter to
nmyself and others. And the subject |ine says, "Request
to delineate proportionate shares of mtigation
obligation.” Do you see that?

A. Sorry. Say that again.

Q The Exhibit 126 that | have up is an enai

fromGarrick Baxter to nyself and others --

A.  Yes.

Q -- is that what you see?

A.  Yes. Yes.

Q GCkay. In that email there is a table that

shows the ground water districts, and their
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proportionate percentages in acre-feet with respect to
the 63,645 acre-foot mtigation obligation of GM. Do
you see that table?

A.  Yes.

Q D d you generate the data that's shown in this
t abl e?

A, Yes.

Q GCkay. And you nentioned a nonent ago that you
were asked by M. Baxter to apportion out | GM s
mtigation obligation, the 63,000 acre-feet figure anbng
t he ground water districts. Does this reflect your
anal ysis in that regard?

A, Yes.

Q That m ddle colum that has acre-feet figures
totaling 63,645 acre-feet. | want to ask you sone
questi ons about that. And we can continue to use North
Snake Ground Water District as an exanple. But on that
bottomrow for North Snake, it shows that its portion of
the 63,645 acre-feet is 3,262 acre-feet. Does this
table indicate that curtail nent of every water right
within North Snake junior to Decenber 30th, 1953, that
woul d produce a transient state reach gain to the
Surface Water Coalition of 3,262 acre-feet?

A. No, it does not.

Q \Wiat does this colunnm represent then?
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A. So this is not -- this colum is not | ooking
at the benefit of curtailnment. This colum is | ooking
at what their share of the demand shortfall is if they

are going to mtigate by providing storage water. And
the shortfall is the result -- this year's shortfall is
the result of decades of punping. So if they are going

to mtigate by providing storage water, then their share

of the denmand shortfall is based on their long-term
i npact .
Q Ckay.
A.  Not what will happen as a result of curtailing

starting this Muy.

Q GCkay. And the denmand shortfall predicted in
the As-Applied Order that's a predicted demand shortfall
for the 2023 irrigation season; correct?

A.  Yes.

Q And under this approach to all ocating that
predi cted demand shortfall. Sone ground water districts
such as North Snake woul d have to provide nore water as
mtigation than the Coalition would receive from
curtailnment. And other ground water districts would
have to provide |less water as mitigation than the
Coalition would receive fromcurtail nent?

A | don't think that's true as far as the

Departnent’'s concerned. | GM' s proportionate share is
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63, 645 acre-feet. And the Departnent, | don't think,
has a say in how you decide to split that up. You asked
us to provide a breakdown, and |I did it by this nethod.
And Garrick sent it to you as a courtesy. But we are
not telling you that that's how you have to split up the
proportionate share.

Q Yeah. And | appreciate that. And | don't
actually even nean to be critical of the nethod. It's
just one method; right? It's not the only nethod. And
| just wanted to highlight that under this nethod in the
proportionate mtigation obligations don't match up with
the transi ent nodel ed reach gains?

A.  No, they do not.

MR. BUDGE: Gkay. Thank you, Jennifer. |
don't have any further questions.

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER:  Ckay. Thank you,
M . Budge.

Do we want to take a break?

MR FLETCHER  Yes.

THE WTNESS: | could use a restroom break, if
I'"mallowed to ask.

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER:  Yes. Let's break for
ten mnutes. W'Ill be back at 11: 30.

(Recess.)

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER: Back on the record,
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Colleen. Al right. W are recordi ng agai n.
More questions of Ms. Sukow. M. Harris.
CROSS- EXAM NATI ON
QUESTI ONS BY MR HARRI S:
Q M. Sukow, I'mRob Harris, attorney for the
Cty of Idaho Falls. | have just sone foll ow up
questions to sone of your prior testinony.

M. Budge tal ked to you about the |IDWR
irrigated | ands datasets. Could you just explain to ne
what those are again?

A. They are delineation of -- a |land use
del i neati on done by IDWNR A S staff that delineates | and
units --

MR. BAXTER  Sorry, Director. W're not able
to hear Ms. Sukow onli ne.

THE WTNESS: Sorry. | had ny m crophone off.

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER:  COkay. Are we okay?
Let's try.

THE WTNESS: The irrigated | ands datasets are
del i neations of |land use by IDWR s G S staff, where they
del i neate | and unit boundaries, and then classify them
as either irrigated, non-irrigated, or sem-irrigated.

Q (BY MR HARRIS) And so those are hand
digitized maps of irrigated acres; correct?

A. Correct, yes.

000088




© 00 N o o b~ wWw N P

[ N R S N A N A C R LS R e e o T e N e B o B e B e B o R )
o b~ W N P O © 00 N o O »d w N B+, O

Hearing - Vol. | - June 6, 2023 89

Q And those irrigated | ands datasets are used to
cal i brate the ESPAM nodel ; correct?

A. They are used in calcul ati on of the water
budget input data that's used in the calibration, yes.

Q So the answer is, yes, they are used in your
nmodel cal i bration?

A. They are used in the nodel calibration, yes.

Q To the best of your know edge, is there
anything else that they are used for within | DANR?

A. There probably is, but I'mnot specifically
awar e.

Q Wien you say "probably,"” what makes you say
t hat ?

A. | have the general inpression that | am not
the only one that uses them

Q Okay. You testified about calibrating the
ground wat er nodel and m nusing out return flows from
the Twn Falls Canal Conpany return flows; is that
correct?

A. | said that they are used in the cal cul ati on
of the Kinmberly to King H Il reach gain target.

Q Ckay. And so you used river gaging
information to help with that calibration; correct? O
I should ask, do you use river gage information for that

cali bration of --
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A. W use river gage information in the
cal cul ati on of reach gains. So that's to cal cul ate an
observati on, a physical observati on of how nuch of the
river flowis comng fromthe aquifer.

Q And do you also do that in the near Bl ackf oot
to M ni doka reach?

A, Yes.

Q So could you just generally explain how you
calibrate nodel runs to what's actually seen or neasured
in the Snake River from near Bl ackfoot to M ni doka?

A. So we have -- during the nodel calibration we
have nodel i1 nput data that we use that, you know, we put
aqui fer recharge and discharge in. And then we try to
mat ch observations. And in nodel calibration, there are
adj ust abl e paraneters, |ike aquifer transm ssivity,
specific yield, and sone other conponents that are
adjusted to best natch observed data. So sone of that
observed data is aquifer head, sone of it is aquifer
interaction with the river. So places where the aquifer
either discharges to the river or receives recharge from
the river. And those observations of reach gain are
used as calibration targets.

Q So let nme just to make sure | understand, |et
me use a hypothetical. Let's say that there is 5,000

cfs nmeasured in the river. How do you detern ne how
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much of that is fromsnow nelt versus reach gains from
ground water in that reach?

A.  You take all of the known surface conponents
and account for them So you have your neasured infl ow
on the upstream end of your reach. Your neasured
outfl ow on the downstream end of your reach. You have
di versions fromthe reach that you account for. You
have surface return flows that you account for. And
al so you m ght have tributary surface streans that you
have a neasurenment that you account for. So you just
account for all those surface inflows and outflows. And
then you have a residual. And the residual is your best
estimate of the contribution of ground water to that
reach.

Q | see. And in terns of the neasurenents that
you use in that calibration, do you obtain that
information fromWater District 1 and its waternaster,
Tony d eni chak?

A. Sone of it.

Q Wien you say "sone of it," is there anything
specifically that you recall that you would obtain from
hi nf

A. The diversion data are obtained fromthe Water
District 01 records.

Q You had nentioned too, though, that you w ||
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| ook at water supply fromother tributary basins in your
calibration. D d | understand your testinony correctly?

A. In afew cases there is a tributary stream
for exanple, you know, the Malad River, for exanple,
above the springs. There is flowin that river, and we
have to account for that when we cal cul ate the reach
gains. Lower Salnon Falls Creek is another exanple of
t hat .

Q But | want to focus nore on the near Bl ackfoot
to Mnidoka. Do you or did you in your calculations, do
you | ook at flows out of either WIIlow Creek, the
Bl ackf oot Basin, or the Portneuf Basins in that
cal i bration?

A. Yes, | know the Portneuf is in that
calibration or that cal culation. The reach gains above
M ni doka are actually cal culated for ne by another staff
menber. | do have a list of all the inflows and
outflows that are accounted for, but I don't have them
nmenori zed.

Q Wwo is that other staff menber who cal cul at es
t hose reach gai ns?

A. Ethan Geisler, Quys-ler. |I'mnot sure howto
pronounce his | ast nane.

Q And he works for the Departnent?

A, Yes.
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Q Is he a nodeler as well?

A.  No.

Q Okay. You were asked before about the node
runs that were presented in your Power Poi nt
presentation. | don't need you to refer to it. But
just a followup question. In any of the nodel runs
that you did for curtail ment, were any ground water
rights renoved fromthose runs?

A. I'msorry. Could you say that question again?

Q Yeah. 1In the nodel runs that you perfornmed,
you didn't take out |like, for exanple, A & B lrrigation
District's ground water rights in those sinul ations?
They were all just ground water rights on the Eastern
Snake Plain Aquifer within the area of comobn ground
wat er supply; is that right?

A. For the sinulations that were presented for
t he various curtail nent dates?

Q Correct.

A. Yes. So anything within the area of common
ground water supply junior to those curtail nent dates,
yeah.

Q Yeah. And | just want to make sure that it
i ncluded all ground water rights in there for any
specific reason that there were any that were |left out.

None were | eft out on these curtail nent runs?
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A. Yeah, | -- well, so we have -- yeah. Anything
that's in our irrigation POD file, and anything that's
in the municipal files.

Q Just a couple followup questions. In the
met hodol ogy order there is an April forecast supply
met hodol ogy. And | just want to ask, did you provide
any technical information on the forecasted supply that
only | ooks at the unregul ated fl ow at Hei se?

A I'msorry. Say that again.

Q Wwell, in the nethodol ogy order, there is a
part that forecast the water supply. Are you famliar
with that part of the order where it | ooks at the
unregul ated fl ow at the Hei se gage on the Snake River.

A. No, | didn't participate in that.

Q And that's really ny question. |Is you weren't
asked to provide any technical information on that part
of the order; were you?

A No.

Q But as far as the technical aspects that you
were asked to participate in, did you have any
di scussi ons on those technical aspects with Mat Waver
or other Departnent staff?

A. | probably did. | don't have a specific
recol | ection.

Q Ckay. Wien you say "you probably did," what
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makes you say that?
AL I'"'msure we just -- | nean, we di scussed what
| was going to present to the technical working group.
MR HARRIS: Ckay. | have no further
questions. Thank you.
THE HEARI NG OFFI CER:  Furt her questions by the
ground water users of M. Sukow?
Ckay. Let's shift.
MR. ANDERSON:. Director, very, very quick.
M. Anderson.
CROSS- EXAM NATI ON
QUESTI ONS BY MR ANDERSON:
Q Jennifer, when did you first learn that the
Fi fth Met hodol ogy Order was goi ng to nove from st eady

state to transi ent?

A. | don't know when Gary nmade a final decision
onit. | know when | was asked to provide information
onit. And that was -- that was for the technical

wor ki ng gr oup.

Q So after the technical working group, the next
tine you knew that it was actually going to change to
transient, was when it came out in April, or did you
know before the i ssuance of the order that it was going
to?

A. | knew when | was asked to assist with
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preparing the draft order.

Q And when was that?

A. | don't recall exactly. Not that |ong before
It canme out.

Q A few weeks, a nonth?

A | don't recall.

Q You don't recall. But when you were asked to
prepare the draft order to assist in the preparation,
you knew then that it was going to nove from steady
state to transient?

A.  Yes.

MR. ANDERSON: Ckay. | don't have any further
questi ons.

THE HEARI NG OFFICER.  All right. Thank you.

Wth no further questions fromthe ground
wat er users, we'll shift to the Surface Water Coalition.
M. Sinpson, you stood up. Are you the exam ner?

MR SI MPSON:  An examiner, M. Director. So |
t hank you for that acknow edgnent.

CROSS- EXAM NATI ON

QUESTI ONS BY MR SI MPSON:

Q Good norning, Ms. Sukow. M nane is John
Si npson. | represent A & B lrrigation District, et al.,
with M. Thonpson. | just have a couple foll ow up

questions for you.
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If you could turn to Exhibit 318 from whi ch
you testified to before. And | believe that's your
slide presentati on from Novenber. And, Jennifer, if you
could just | ook at pages 21 and 22. | believe those are
your conclusions; is that correct?

A. That's correct.
Q Those are your conclusions fromthe nodeling

you produced as a part of that presentation in Novenber;

correct?
A Correct.
Q As you sit here today, are those still your

concl usions that you would represent to the Hearing
Oficer and to the parties in terns of the nodeling
exerci se you conpleted in the conpari son between steady
state and transient?

A.  Yes.

Q Ckay. And then if you would | ook at page 6 of
that presentation. And that's the graph that you
testified to earlier regardi ng exam nati on by
Ms. McHugh. Do you see the paragraphs in the m ddl e of
t he graph regarding the "Less than 15 percent of the

steady state inpacts of a single-season curtail nent are

realized." Do you see that |anguage in that graph, that
I nsert?
A, Yes.
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Q GCkay. And that's your conclusion; correct?

A. Yes, that's --

Q Yes.

A. -- data fromthe anal yses.

Q R ght. So that would support your concl usions

on page 21 and 22, that the basis for why steady state
anal ysis is not appropriate for short-termriver reach
gains; is that correct?

A wWell, | think beyond that, because the steady
state sinulations do not sinulate the short-term
curtailnents that are prescribed in the Surface Water
Coal i ti on net hodol ogy.

Q Ckay.

A. But the difference in volune is just the
result of doing sonething that does sinulate the
short-termcurtail nent.

Q Raght. So if you utilize the steady state
nodel run, you are just not going to realize the anount
of water into the reach to mtigate for the identified
injury in the Fifth Methodol ogy As-Applied O der;
correct?

A. Not within this irrigation season.

Q And so then the second itemis in response to
questions by Ms. Kl ahn regarding the south side returns

and the considerati on of those south side flow returns.
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Do you recall that testinony?

A, Yes.

Q Ckay. And those nunbers identified by
Ms. Klahn that you testified to, were those estinmates of
t he ground water recharge contribution fromirrigation
on the North Side Canal Conpany systenf

A. | Dbelieve she was asking ne about inflows from
t he south side.

Q Fromthe south side. Wth respect to those
south side return flows, and the nunbers you've
testified to, or were asked about. Wre those in
response to the estimations, cal culations regarding the
estimated ground water return flows fromirrigation on
the Twn Falls systenm do you recall?

A. Oh, | think you said north side, and | was
conf used.

Q If I did, I apologize.

A. No, they are neasured flows in the return
channel s, which are on the south side deeply incised.
And in a previous version of ESPAM we were estinating
t hose based on a water budget method, which is | think
what you are asking about. But | determ ned that our
nmeasurenments were giving us the sane volune. And then
havi ng the actual neasurenents is nuch better for

cal cul ati ng the reach gain, because it accounts for the
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seasonality.

Bef ore we had been averaging it. But with the
nmeasurenments, we're actually able to account for the
nmont hl y seasonality, which gave us -- allowed us to
renove a fair anount of noise fromour reach gain
cali bration target.

Q So those south side return flows that you are
di scussing, were those only the Twin Falls return fl ows,
or did those include sone other tributaries to the Snake
Ri ver on the south side of the river?

A Well, there is Lower Sal non Falls Creek,
whi ch, you know, we deduct out the total flow in Lower
Sal nmon Falls Creek. Sone of that is fromreturn flows,
but we don't really care whether it's fromreturn fl ows
or other surface flows. W just deduct off the entire
creek flow

Q Ckay.

A. And then there is also return flows from
surface return flows fromthe north side that we deduct
of f?

Q Correct.

A.  Yeah.

Q And then M. Budge was asking you about a
cal cul ation that you did with respect to dividing up the

| GM' s proportionate share under the Footnote 5, |
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believe, of the As-Applied Order. Do you recall that
testi nony?

A.  Yes.

Q I'mnot sure if |I fully appreciated the
cal cul ati on you nade. But ny understanding is that your
met hod that you utilized, and this was your proposed
met hod, acknow edged the |l ong-terminpacts of each
ground water district on the Bl ackfoot to M ni doka
reach. And then once that percentage was cal cul at ed,
then it was utilized in the cal cul ation of the
responsi bility of each ground water district of the
total for IGM; is that correct?

A. Wll, and again, that was provided as a
courtesy, and the Departnent is not telling them | GM
what each ground water districts responsibility is. But
it is just an apportioning of it based on their
| ong-term i npacts.

Q Rght. And with respect to your work under
Exhi bit 318, you weren't asked whether or not to
consi der, when you | ooked at the curtail ment scenari os
and transient curtailnment, and the nunber of acres to be
curtailed as you' ve testified here today, whether or not
any of those acres were the subject of ongoing
mtigation plans or stipul ated agreenents; were you?

A. I'msorry. Say that again.
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Q WwWell, sinply your work that you did for
Exhi bit 318, the nodeling you produced in Novenber.
Di dn't consi der whether or not any of the ground water
acres that you identified that would be subject to
curtail nent, were part of an existing or an approved
mtigation plan?

A No.

MR SIMPSON:. Ckay. That's all the questions
I have. Thank you.

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER  Any ot her questions from
t he Surface Water Coa